Public Document Pack

Your ref:
Our ref:
Enquiries to: Nichola Turnbull
Email: nichola.turnbull@northumberland.gov.uk
Tel direct: 01670 622617
Date: Tuesday, 21 June 2022

Dear Sir or Madam,
Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the COMMUNITIES AND PLACE OSC to be
held in COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL on WEDNESDAY, 29 JUNE 2022 at 2.00 PM.
Yours faithfully

Daljit Lally
Chief Executive

To Communities and Place OSC members as follows:J Reid (Chair), M Mather (Vice-Chair), D Carr, E Cartie, G Castle, A Dale, R Dodd,
B Gallacher, J Lang and N Morphet

Daljit Lally, Chief Executive
County Hall, Morpeth, Northumberland, NE61 2EF
T: 0345 600 6400
www.northumberland.gov.uk

AGENDA
PART I
It is expected that the matters included in this part of the agenda
will be dealt with in public.

1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.

DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS
Unless already entered in the Council’s Register of Members’ interests,
members are required where a matter arises at a meeting;
a) Which directly relates to Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (‘DPI’) as set
out in Appendix B, Table 1 of the Code of Conduct, to disclose the
interest, not participate in any discussion or vote and not to remain in
room. Where members have a DPI or if the matter concerns an
executive function and is being considered by a Cabinet Member with
a DPI they must notify the Monitoring Officer and arrange for
somebody else to deal with the matter.
b) Which directly relates to the financial interest or well being of a Other
Registrable Interest as set out in Appendix B, Table 2 of the Code of
Conduct to disclose the interest and only speak on the matter if
members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but
otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter
and must not remain the room.
c) Which directly relates to their financial interest or well-being (and is
not DPI) or the financial well being of a relative or close associate, to
declare the interest and members may only speak on the matter if
members of the public are also allowed to speak. Otherwise, the
member must not take part in discussion or vote on the matter and
must leave the room.
d) Which affects the financial well-being of the member, a relative or
close associate or a body included under the Other Registrable
Interests column in Table 2, to disclose the interest and apply the test
set out at paragraph 9 of Appendix B before deciding whether they
may remain in the meeting.
e) Where Members have or a Cabinet Member has an Other Registerable
Interest or Non Registerable Interest in a matter being considered in
exercise of their executive function, they must notify the Monitoring
Officer and arrange for somebody else to deal with it.
NB Any member needing clarification must contact
monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk. Members are referred to the
Code of Conduct which contains the matters above in full. Please refer to
the guidance on disclosures at the rear of this agenda letter.

Communities and Place OSC, 29 June 2022

3.

FORWARD PLAN OF CABINET DECISIONS

(Pages 1
- 2)

To note the latest Forward Plan of key decisions. Any further changes
made to the Forward Plan will be reported to the Committee.
SCRUTINY
The Cabinet Member requested to attend for the following item is Councillor Glen
Sanderson, Leader of the Council.
4.1

Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 2022/25

(Pages 3
- 20)

The Cabinet considered this report on 7 June 2022, which proposed a
strategy for funding, siting, installing and maintaining electric vehicle
chargepoints for the next three years starting in the financial year 2022/23.
The Committee are requested to consider and comment on the
implementation of the proposals. (The report and extract from the Cabinet
minutes are enclosed).
The Cabinet Member requested to attend for the following item is Councillor John
Riddle, Portfolio Holder for Environment & Local Services.
4.2

Northumberland Waste Management Strategy - Proposed Food Waste
Recycling Pilot Schemes

(Pages
21 - 40)

The Cabinet considered this report on 7 June 2022 which set out future
obligations to offer food waste collections to households arising from the
Environment Act 2021 and to seek approval for a weekly household food
waste collection pilot scheme to assess the viability of collections across
Northumberland, together with a home food waste composting pilot
scheme to consider potential options in rural areas where weekly food
waste collections may not be practicable or affordable.
The report highlighted the importance of the Council gaining an
understanding of the financial, social, human resource and environmental
implications of delivering a new food waste recycling service across the
whole County when Government funding becomes available around
2024/25.
The Committee are requested to consider and comment on the
implementation of the proposals. (The report and extract from the Cabinet
minutes are enclosed).
REPORT OF THE SCRUTINY CO-ORDINATOR
5.

COMMUNITIES AND PLACE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
WORK PROGRAMME AND MONITORING REPORT
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee operates within a work programme
which is agreed at the start of the Council year. The programme is

Communities and Place OSC, 29 June 2022

(Pages
41 - 44)

reviewed at each meeting so that it can be adjusted to reflect the wishes of
the Committee and take account of any changes to the latest Forward Plan
(which outlines decisions to be taken by the Cabinet). The Committee is
asked to review and note its work programme for the 2022/23 council year.
6.

URGENT BUSINESS
To consider such other business as, in the opinion of the Chair, should, by
reason of special circumstances, be considered as a matter of urgency.

Communities and Place OSC, 29 June 2022

IF YOU HAVE AN INTEREST AT THIS MEETING, PLEASE:
● Declare it and give details of its nature before the matter is discussed or as soon as it
becomes apparent to you.
● Complete this sheet and pass it to the Democratic Services Officer.

Name:

Date of meeting:

Meeting:
Item to which your interest relates:

Nature of Interest i.e. either disclosable pecuniary interest (as defined by Table 1 of Appendix B to
the Code of Conduct, Other Registerable Interest or Non-Registerable Interest (as defined by
Appendix B to Code of Conduct) (please give details):

Are you intending to withdraw from the meeting?

Communities and Place OSC, Wednesday, 29 June 2022

Yes - ☐

No - ☐

Registering Interests
Within 28 days of becoming a member or your re-election or re-appointment to office you must register
with the Monitoring Officer the interests which fall within the categories set out in Table 1 (Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests) which are as described in “The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary
Interests) Regulations 2012”. You should also register details of your other personal interests which fall
within the categories set out in Table 2 (Other Registerable Interests).
“Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” means an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of
your partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in Table 1 below.
"Partner" means a spouse or civil partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or
a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners.
1. You must ensure that your register of interests is kept up-to-date and within 28 days of becoming
aware of any new interest, or of any change to a registered interest, notify the Monitoring Officer.
2. A ‘sensitive interest’ is as an interest which, if disclosed, could lead to the councillor, or a person
connected with the councillor, being subject to violence or intimidation.
3. Where you have a ‘sensitive interest’ you must notify the Monitoring Officer with the reasons why
you believe it is a sensitive interest. If the Monitoring Officer agrees they will withhold the interest
from the public register.
Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest
4. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Disclosable Pecuniary
Interests as set out in Table 1, you must disclose the interest, not participate in any discussion or
vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If
it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an
interest.
Dispensation may be granted in limited circumstances, to enable you to participate and vote on a
matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest.
5. Where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest on a matter to be considered or is being
considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function, you must notify the
Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps in the matter apart
from arranging for someone else to deal with it.
Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests
6. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to the financial interest or wellbeing of
one of your Other Registerable Interests (as set out in Table 2), you must disclose the interest. You
may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but
otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the
room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to
disclose the nature of the interest.
Disclosure of Non-Registerable Interests

Communities and Place OSC, Wednesday, 29 June 2022

7. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or well-being
(and is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest set out in Table 1) or a financial interest or well-being of
a relative or close associate, you must disclose the interest. You may speak on the matter only if
members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in
any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted
a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest.
8. Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects –
a. your own financial interest or well-being;
b. a financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate; or
c. a financial interest or wellbeing of a body included under Other Registrable Interests as set
out in Table 2 you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you can remain
in the meeting after disclosing your interest the following test should be applied
9. Where a matter (referred to in paragraph 8 above) affects the financial interest or well- being:

a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of inhabitants of the
ward affected by the decision and;

b. a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it would affect
your view of the wider public interest
You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the
meeting. Otherwise, you must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and
must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation.
If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest.

10. Where you have an Other Registerable Interest or Non-Registerable Interest on a matter to be
considered or is being considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive
function, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further
steps in the matter apart from arranging for someone else to deal with it.

Communities and Place OSC, 29 June 2022

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
FORWARD PLAN OF FORTHCOMING CABINET DECISIONS
JULY TO OCTOBER 2022
DECISION

PROPOSED
SCRUTINY DATE

Advance Northumberland Reserved
Matters Approval
The report requests Cabinet approval to
courses of action that are matters reserved to
Northumberland County Council as
Shareholder under the Articles of Association
of its wholly-owned group company Advance
Northumberland Ltd and its subsidiaries
(“Advance”).
(R. Wearmouth/ W. Thompson –
07929836782)

TBC

CABINET DATE

12 July 2022

Blyth Welding & Fabrication Inflationary
N/A
Pressure Funding
To recommend to Cabinet that additional funds
are drawn from the Strategic Regeneration
Reserve to supplement the allocated funding
from the Medium Term Financial Plan for
provision of a technical welding & fabrication
training centre in the Blyth area.

12 July 2022

Homes for Ukraine – Finance
The report provides an overview for Cabinet of
the Homes for Ukraine Scheme, and requests
approval to spend in advance of payment
being received from Government to support
the delivery of the required Local Authority
commitments.
(C. Horncastle/ Philip Soderquest 07824 457
376)

N/A

12 July 2022

Recommissioning of an Integrated Sexual
Health Service
To seek permission from Cabinet to
commission an Integrated Sexual Health
Service, which is a statutory obligation. The
contract will be greater than £2m, therefore
there is the need to ask Cabinet to delegate
the expenditure to the Director of Public
Health.
(W. Pattison/J. Liddell - 07929 775559)

FACS OSC
5 July 2022

12 July 2022

Haydon Parish Neighbourhood Plan

N/A

13 September 2022

Page 1

To seek approval to formally ‘make’ the
Haydon Parish Neighbourhood Plan. The Plan
passed independent examination in March
2022. A local referendum will be held in the
Parish of Haydon on 30 June 2022 and it is
expected that there will be a majority vote in
favour of using the Plan to make decisions on
planning applications. The Council will then be
obliged by statute to make the Neighbourhood
Plan unless it considers that doing so would
breach European Union obligations, and that
action should be completed within 8 weeks of
the date of the referendum.
(C. Horncastle/S. Brannigan 07966 335 508)
Trading Companies’ Financial Performance
2022-23 - Position at the end of June 2022
The purpose of the report is to ensure that the
Cabinet is informed of the current financial
positions of its trading companies for 2022-23
(R. Wearmouth/M. Calvert - 01670 620197)
(Confidential report)

CSEG OSC
12 September 2022

Page 2

13 September 2022

Agenda Item 4a
C

Cabinet 7th June 2022
Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 2022/25
Report of Cabinet Member: Cllr Glen Sanderson, Leader of the Council
Matt Baker, Service Director for Climate Change, Business Intelligence and Corporate
Performance
Paul Jones, Service Director for Local Services

Purpose of report
This report follows the Climate Change Cabinet Update of February 2022.
Note the intention to scale up EV charging provision through in-house delivery, funded
through a combination of bids to the national OZEV ORCS scheme and NCC capital funding.
The detail of the funding required will be specified in a standalone report and reviewed
through the appropriate governance forums.
This report proposes a strategy for funding, siting, installing and maintaining electric vehicle
chargepoints for the next three years starting in the financial year 2022/23.
Recommendations
1. Approve the strategic intention to prioritise residents who park on-street as the primary
target market for future electric vehicle charge points and the hierarchy for site
selection.
2. Approve the intention to bid to ORCS for funding for 75 ‘on street’ EVCP units (150
EVCP sockets), a bid value £367,200, which it is proposed to match fund by £244,800
from the 2022/23 NCC Capital Programme.
3. Approve the capital match funding allocation of £244,800. This funding is contained
within the 2022/23 approved Capital Programme; Local Services EV Charging Fund
(£200,000) and the Climate Change Capital Fund (£44,800).
4. Approve capital funding of £95,880 from the Climate Change Capital Fund to fully
fund the installation of an additional 2 rapid EVCPs at Berwick and Haltwhistle and 1
fast charger at Seahouses car park to improve provision for visitors in areas of known
high demand. This funding is contained within the 2022/23 approved Capital

Page 3

Programme; Climate Change Capital Fund. These EVCPs would not be eligible for
grant funding support under current Government funding schemes.
5. Authorise the Service Director for Local Services in consultation with the Cabinet
Member for Environment and Local Services to make in -year adjustments to the tariff,
should this be considered necessary in response to changes to electricity prices, cost
of materials or labour so that the income generated from charges covers running costs
and there is no additional revenue budget requirement.
6. Approve the commitment to install EV chargers in any new or expanded car parks as
part of the capital budget of that project covering a minimum 5% of parking bays.
Link to Corporate Plan
The delivery of this strategy will support the council’s ambition for Northumberland to be a
net zero county by 2030. A key component of the Corporate Plan.
Key Issues.
1. Background
Transport currently accounts for approximately a third of all positive carbon emissions within
Northumberland. While certain policy decisions such as the ban on the sale of new internal
combustion engine cars in 2030 will create additional stimulus for the change to EVs, barriers
still exist, limiting EV ownership.
In the last 6 years, the new car sales in Northumberland have been around 2,000 cars per
year. From 2011 to 2021, the number of Ultra Low Emission Vehicles (ULEVs) in
Northumberland has increased from 89 to 1344, around 1% of all cars owned in
Northumberland.
In order to reach net-zero carbon emissions by 2030, our modelling shows that around 30%
of cars owned in Northumberland will need to be electric vehicles. This will require a
significant shift across the next 8 years.
Currently, the people most likely to own an EV fit a certain sector of society, they will almost
always have access to off-street parking, be reasonably well off, often have access to a
company car or other lease schemes and will tend not to undertake long journeys on a regular
basis.
In order to meet our ambitions for net-zero, EV ownership needs to become a viable and
attractive option for residents well beyond this small section of society.

2

Page 4

In Northumberland, the majority of properties (77.5%) have access to private off-street
parking and can therefore be reasonably expected to install their own EVCP if they wish to
operate an EV. The remaining 22.5% of residents however, park on the street and would
struggle to charge an EV without dedicated infrastructure. This 22.5% of residents represents
approximately 23,000 households.
There are several other developments which will occur over the coming 8 year period to 2030
which will make EV ownership more viable to a mass-market and which we can anticipate
with reasonable certainty.
1. The second hand EV market will increase substantially as existing new EVs start to
filter down in greater quantities. This will make more and better EVs available at a
lower price point [1-3].
2. The distance EVs can travel on a single charge (their range) will continue to increase,
making them more attractive to people currently put off by ‘range anxiety’ [4-7].
3. The variety of models at different price points will continue to increase as more
manufacturers come to market [4,8,9].
4. The private sector, in particular large petrol forecourt operators, will move to provide
EV charging stations in anticipation of a drop in demand for petrol and diesel at their
pumps. In the UK, 71.3% of the EV charging market share is controlled by the private
sector. [10,13].
5. Residents with their own off-street parking will continue to be able to install their own
chargepoints through private providers [14].
6. Vehicle to grid (V2G) charging technology will develop meaning electric vehicles can
be used as mass storage batteries, supplying electricity to a home or to the grid when
they are full and not in use [11,12].
3

Page 5

7. The hospitality sector will install more EVCPs through private providers in order to
meet demand from customers [10].
Northumberland County Council currently owns and operates 65 EVCPs across the county,
a proportion of which have been installed this year. At their current rate of use, at a tariff of
35p/kwh these generate approximately £1202.90 per unit, per annum in revenue. This has
not wholly covered the cost of electricity and maintenance in the financial year 2021/22. More
detail can be found in section 2.4.
1.1 References
1. https://www.rac.co.uk/drive/news/electric-vehicles-news/record-year-for-second-hand-evsales-as-used-car-market-grows/
2. https://www.fleetnews.co.uk/news/fleet-industry-news/2022/02/08/used-car-market-growswith-record-demand-for-used-electric-vehicles
3. https://www.express.co.uk/life-style/cars/1468346/electric-vehicle-second-hand-concerns
4. Smart Cities 2021, 4, 372–404. https://doi.org/10.3390/smartcities4010022
5. World Electr. Veh. J. 2021, 12, 20. https://doi.org/10.3390/wevj12010020
6. https://global.nissannews.com/en/releases/nissan-ambition-2030-vision-to-empowermobility-beyond
7. https://www.autocar.co.uk/car-news/electric-cars/volvo-targets-621-mile-ev-range-2030-parttech-focus
8. https://www.theguardian.com/business/2021/may/09/electric-cars-will-be-cheaper-toproduce-than-fossil-fuel-vehicles-by-2027
9. Energy and Built Environment 2021, 2, 204-2013. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.enbenv.2020.07.005
10. https://www.zap-map.com/statistics/#points
11. Energies 2021, 14, 3673. https://doi.org/10.3390/en14123673

12. Energies 2022, 15, 589. https://doi.org/10.3390/en15020589
13. https://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/CBP-7480/CBP-7480.pdf
14. https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/customer-guidance-electric-vehiclehomecharge-scheme

2. Priorities for the next 3 years
2.1. Site Selection and Funding
Given the above, it is important to identify and agree where the Council’s priorities should
be in order to facilitate and support the shift to electric vehicles which is required to meet
our net-zero ambitions.
2.1.1. Funding
There are two funding streams for EVCPs available from central government:
•

On Street Residential Charge Point Scheme (ORCS) is a reasonably wellestablished fund targeting the provision of EV charging for people who do not have a
driveway or garage and therefore park on the street. £20m of funding is available for
Local Authorities in 2022/23 and must be 40% match funded. The cap on bids to this

4

Page 6

•

fund has been removed allowing bids for significantly more funding towards a scaledup network of chargers.
This fund has been identified as the primary source of funding for EVCP
infrastructure this financial year.
Local Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Fund (LEVI) was announced by government
at the end of March 2022. Initially a £10m pilot fund is available to fund between 3 and
8 projects with an anticipated £450m in future years. This fund is also targeted at the
on-street charging market but with an emphasis on innovation and private sector
collaboration.
NCC will continue to monitor the progress of this fund and assess whether an
additional bid could be made for a new project which aligns with the criteria.

Both funding streams are managed by the Energy Saving Trust (EST) on behalf of the
government. NCC has a good relationship with the EST and will continue to work with them
to identify appropriate funding.
Based on the evidence and funding available, it is recommended that the Council focus its
EVCP network primarily on its residents who park on the street and do not have access to
their own driveways. Without the Council’s intervention in this market, it is likely that this group
will continue to face significant barriers to purchasing or leasing EVs.
It should be noted however, that in many cases, particularly smaller communities, on -street
chargers can also cater for visitors to the area and other EV drivers as well as meeting the
needs of residents.
Furthermore, focusing on this market will make the Council eligible for funding from central
government as identified above.
Following this strategy, the sites selected for chargers will be chosen through a variety of
means, led by the Climate Change Team and supported by the Highways Team. Residents
are currently able to register their interest in having an on -street EV charge point through our
website. This has created a map of demand. There are also ad-hoc requests made by Town
and Parish Councils which can be accommodated. Both the Climate Change and Highways
teams also have a view on where strategically there are gaps in our current offer. A system
of prioritisation has been developed using the following hierarchy:
1. Sites which serve on-street parking but will also be attractive to visitors during the day.
2. Sites which serve on-street parking only.
3. Sites which serve visitors only.
Categories 1 and 2 would be eligible for ORCS funding. Category 3 would need to be fully
funded by NCC.

5

Page 7

Recommendation 1: approve the strategic intention to prioritise residents who park on-street
as the primary target market for future electric vehicle charge points and the hierarchy for site
selection.
It is therefore recommended that across the next three years, the Council bid for funding
towards 75 ‘on-street’ EVCPs per year which target categories 1 and 2, each with at least
two charging sockets. Annually, the capital requirements for this will be £612,000 with 60%
(£367,200) provided through the ORCS grant and 40% (£244,800) from NCC’s Climate
Change Capital Fund (£44,800) and Local Services EV rollout fund (£200,000).
There are a small number of additional sites which have been identified under category 3 but
which have high demand. These include two rapid chargers serving key trunk routes (Berwick
and Haltwhistle) and additional fast chargers in a high demand tourist car park (Seahouses).
We therefore also intend to install additional chargers in these three locations and to cover
the capital cost entirely from internal funding. This will require an additional £95,880 capital
investment from the Climate Change Capital Fund.
The total capital cost to NCC in the coming financial year is therefore £340,680, which is
proposed to be funded from the approved 2022/23 Capital Programme; Local Services EV
Charging Fund (£200,000) and from the Climate Change Capital Fund (£140,680). Match
grant funding from OZEV will be sought for £367,200. The total value of the proposed EVCP
programme in 2022/23 including grant funding is therefore £707,880.
A similar number of EVCPs at a similar value will be installed in years 1 and 2 (2023/24 and
2024/25) of the project but new business cases will be drawn up and submitted to Capital
Strategy Group for approval once details of sites etc. are confirmed.
Figure 1 below summarises the capital cost and funding sources for category 1, 2 and 3
installations. NB costs in year 1 and 2 are indicative and subject to change as above.
Category 1 and 2 Installations
Total (£, for ORSC funded
EVCPS)
ORCS funding (£, 60% of
the total )
NCC ORCS match funding
(£, 40% of the total)
TOTAL PROJECT VALUE
(£)
Category 3 Installations
NCC internal funding to
install Rapid (£, > 22 kW)
NCC internal pot to install
Fast (£, 11 kW, 22 kW)

Year 0
612,000

Year 1
612,000

Year 2
612,000

367,200

367,200

367,200

244,800

244,800

244,800

612,000

612,000

612,000

71,400

-

-

24,480

-

-

6

Page 8

TOTAL PROJECT VALUE
(£)

95,880

-

-

Figure 1 – Capital Costs
Recommendation 2: approve the bid to ORCS for funding for 75 EVCP units (150 EVCP sockets), a
bid value of £367,200, which it is proposed to match fund with £244,800 of NCC capital programme
funding.
Recommendation 3: approve the match funding allocation of £244,800. This funding is contained
within the 2022/23 approved Capital Programme; Local Services EV Charging Fund (£200,000) and
the Climate Change Capital Fund (£44,800),
Recommendation 4: Approve capital funding of £95,880 from the Climate Change Capital Fund to
fully fund the installation of an additional 2 rapid EVCPs at Berwick and Haltwhistle and 1 fast charger
at Seahouses car park. Which again is contained within the 2022/23 approved capital programme.

2.2. Back Office System
The Customer Service and Payment solution also needs to be stan dardised. A back-office
system is currently being procured and the cost is covered within Figure 2 below from the
Highways and Technical Services revenue budget. Future chargepoints will be administered
using this. A reliable back-office provider will ensure that the charging tariff can be monitored
and set dynamically and that the issues encountered in 2021/22 (see section 2.4) will not be
repeated.
2.3. Staffing
The project requires a dedicated staff team to plan, install, maintain, and run new and existing
EVCPs within the county at this increased scale. This team and its resources can be formed
from existing Highways operatives and it is not anticipated that additional staffing will be
required in the three years of this strategy. These revenue costs are accounted for in the
business case below.
Additional project management support will be provided by the Climate Change team.
Support will also be required from the Energy Contract Manager in the Commercial Team
who will need to provide regular updates on the cost of wholesale electricity in order to ensure
our charging tariff is correct.
Roles and Responsibilities
Responsibility for the delivery of this strategy will be shared by the Climate Change Team
and the Highways Team as follows with support from the Commercial Team.
Task
Strategy Paper

Lead Team
Climate Change

7

Page 9

Lead Staff
Nick Johnston

Site Selection

OZEV Bid
Liaison with EST and OZEV
reporting
Liaison with Town and
Parish Councils and other
third parties.
Comms & Engagement/PR

Climate Change (strategic
lead)
Highways (support)
Climate Change
Climate Change

Diego Perera-Solis
Richard McKenzie, Kris
Westerby
Diego Perera-Solis
Diego Perera-Solis

Climate Change

Diego Perera-Solis

Climate Change

Diego Perera-Solis/Kim
Waugh
Kris Westerby

Procurement of EVCPS

Highways

Installation of EVCPs

Highways

Delivery of back-office
system
Ongoing maintenance of
EVCPs
Supplying monthly
electricity billing rates
Reviewing and calculating
charging tariff
Implementing
recommended tariff

Highways
Highways

Kris Westerby
Keith Hopper
Richard McKenzie

Commercial Team

Kris Westerby
Keith Hopper
Evie O’Neil

Climate Change

Diego Perera-Solis

Highways

Richard McKenzie

From project initiation onwards, regular fortnightly meetings will be held between key
members of the Climate Change and Highways team to ensure agreement and alignment at
all stages of the project. Decisions will be made with the agreement of both teams and
supported by senior management input.
2.4. Revenue Generation
EV chargers are now a source of revenue for the Council with electricity being currently
charged to customers at 35p/kwh. The introduction of this tariff required an updated interface
across our rapid charging network as well as additional maintenance to fast chargers. This
meant that the tariff was implemented in stages across the summer of 2021.
An anticipated reduction in the usage of chargers following implementation of the tariff did
not occur, suggesting that users are comfortable with this payment and that demand is strong.
Recovery of this revenue has been hampered by the back-office operators going into
administration. The uncertainty in back-office provision has also made it difficult to recharge
internal users (i.e. NCC fleet vehicles) to the correct cost-centre when they have used the
public charging network.

8

Page 10

All the above has led to a deficit between income and cost in the financial year 2021/22 .
Provision of a new back office system will improve revenue returns but the proposal outlined
in this paper will still result in an annual net revenue deficit of approximately £70,000 from
year 3 of the project if there is no variation to the customer tariff, the cost of electricity or the
demand on the chargers. It is therefore anticipated that in year 3, the tariff is raised to 40p/kwh
through the delegated authority sought within this paper (Recommendation 5). This will
ensure that there is no increase in the net revenue budget requirement. This is shown in
figure 2 below. If demand increases or electricity costs decrease then it may be possible to
lower this charge.
Regardless of the above, given the increasing cost of energy and materials, it will be
important to ensure the tariff is regularly reviewed through years 0 – 3 of the project and that
it continues to cover its costs. Given the volatility of the electricity market it is considered
prudent to provide delegated authority to enable timely changes to be made to the tariffs in year should this prove necessary to ensure the service remains self-financing.
Recommendation 5: Authorise the Service Director for Local Services in consultation with the
Cabinet Member for Environment and Local Services to make in-year adjustments to the
tariff, should this be considered necessary in response to changes to electricity prices, cost
of materials or maintenance so that the income generated from charges fully covers running
costs.
Revenue costs can be forecasted taking into account the cost of the team for PMO,
installation and maintenance together with the cost of materials and electricity. Figure 2 below
summarises the existing revenue base budget position for 2022/23, which funds the existing
EVCP’s, and the forecast budget between 2022/23 and 2025/26 assuming installation of an
additional 75 chargers per annum in year 0-2, plus 3 rapid chargers in 2022/23, as detailed
within this report.
Forecast Budget
2022-23
Base

2022-23
Revised

2023-24

2024-25

2025-26

Year 0

Year 1

Year 2

Year 3

Revenue Budgets

£

£

£

£

£

Maintenance (Pat
testing/Repairs etc)

50,000

50,000

71,420

101,420

271,910

8,470

16,940

25,410

25,410

13,770

20,000

20,000

20,000

Other Costs
(Training/PPE/Insurance etc)
Costs associated with
revenue collection

6,760

9

Page 11

Electricity costs associated
with charge points

80,000

110,770

182,550

313,600

475,070

Income from tariff

-96,020

-142,270

-250,170

-447,140

-774,680

Net Revenue Budget
Revenue Budget Change

40,740

40,740

40,740

13,290

17,710
-23,030

Figure 2 – 2022/23 existing Revenue Base Budget plus Forecast Revenue Budget

The table above shows a net revenue budget reduction of £23,030 is forecast by year 3,
assuming that the tariff is increased to 40p/kwh in year 3.
NB. This business case is dependent on successful bids for grant funding across three years.
There is confidence in our case and in the available funding streams but should bids be
unsuccessful, a revised and scaled-back business case will need to be developed.
2.5. Year 0 Site Locations
Selecting locations for EVCPs is complex requires a number of factors to be considered which
fit the hierarchy stated in section 2.1.1:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Density of properties with only on -street parking
Lack of nearby EV charging options
Likely demand from visitors and residents combined
Grid capacity and connection potential
Displacement of existing parking and potential conflict
Sensitivity to environmental considerations (conservation areas, natural environment
etc.)

The specific location within a given town or village is subject to change. A bid can be
submitted to ORCS based on indicative locations and changes be incorporated at a later
stage. Therefore, it should be noted that the specific postcodes listed here are indicative only.
Some locations will require permission from town and parish councils.
Location

Acomb, Main Street
Allenheads, Main Square
Alnmouth, Northumberland Street
Amble, Queen Street Car Park
Ashington, Newbiggin Rd,

Postcode

NE46 4PW
NE47 9HN
NE66 2RT
NE65 0DQ
NE63 0SZ

10

Page 12

Number of
Chargers

2
2
2
3
3

Type of
Chargers
(7, 11 or
22 kW)
7
7
22
7
7

Ashington, Sixth Ave,
Bardon Mill village centre
Berwick-upon-Tweed, Castle Gate Car Park
Berwick-upon-Tweed, Spittal, Sandstell Rd
Blyth, Waterloo Road
Choppington, opposite Travellers Rest
Elsdon, Village Centre
Haltwhistle Library Car Park
Harbottle (Village Hall)
Haydon Bridge, Ratcliffe Road
Hedley on the Hill, Main Street
Hexham, Community Centre Car Park
Hexham, Loosing Hill Car Park
Longframlington, village centre
Longhorsley, village hall
Lowick, Main Street
Lynemouth, W Market Street,
Morpeth, Dacre Street Car Park
Newbiggin-by-the-Sea, Church Point
Newmarket East Carpark
Newton Community Hall
Norham, Castle Street
Prudhoe, Station
Rothbury, Front Street (funded by S106)
Seahouses, Seafield Car Park
Slaley, Main Street
Stocksfield, Station
Wark, Village Centre
Warkworth, The Stanners

NE63 0PH
NE24 1DP
TD15 1DR
TD15 1RE
NE24 1DG
NE62 5SE
NE19 1AD
NE49 9AQ
NE65 7DG
NE47 6HB
NE43 7SP
NE46 3QT
NE46 1XQ
NE65 8HU
NE65 8UL
TD15 2UA
NE61 5SY
NE61 1HW
NE64 6HG
NE61 1LB
NE43 7UL
TD15 2LB
NE42 5ER
NE65 7UA
NE68 7RQ
NE47 0AA
NE43 7NH
NE48 3LL
NE65 0UU

2
2
1
4
2
3
1
1
3
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
4
4
3
2
2
2
2
3
2
3
2
3

7
7
50
7
7
7
7
50
7
7
7
7
7
7
7
7
7
11
11
11
7
7
11
11
11
7
7
7
7

This totals 79 EVCPs each at least double headed creating 158 charging sockets. 75 of these
EVCPs could be part funded through a successful bid to ORCS.
Sites for years 1 and 2 of the project will be identified and proposed annually as part of a
business case to Capital Strategy Group for further capital draw down.
2.6. Additional Sites
2.6.1. Workplace Charging
Workplace Charging is outside the scope of this strategy. The Council’s estate is currently
reasonably well served with EV charging for its employees. This will significantly increase at
County Hall with the development of the Solar Car Port which will provide 120 new EVCPs
for employees to use at that location.
Evidence shows that EV owners prefer to charge their vehicles at home, overnight. If the
strategy set out in this paper is successful, we will be creating an environment where that is
11

Page 13

possible, even if you do not have access to off-street parking. This would leave workplace
charging as a lower priority in the long term as most vehicles will be able to travel to and from
the workplace without an additional charge. That said, the shift to electric vehicles will not be
so binary and we will need to monitor the demand amongst ou r workforce for charging in the
workplace and respond to this if necessary. Therefore, it is suggested that workplace
charging across the Council estate is reviewed annually.
2.6.2. Third Party Sites
The Council has been approached in some cases to install and manage EVCPs on sites not
owned by us. In this instance, the potential for revenue generation should be considered and
a positive NPV confirmed within a business case based on anticipated footfall. If a business
case can be made, then the Council should install EVCPs. When installing to 3rd party sites,
the CAPEX and OPEX are assumed by the Council, taking all income generated from the
EVCPs with the 35p/kWh tariff, while the landowner simply hosts the EVCPs and has no
liability.
2.6.3. New Car Parks
The Council will inevitably be building additional car parking capacity within its capi tal
programme either in the form of new car parks or expansion/refurbishment of existing car
parks. It is recommended that EV charging provision be built into any car parking capital
programme catering for a minimum 5% of spaces (i.e. a 100 bay car park would require a
minimum of 5 EV charging bays).
Recommendation 6: approve the commitment to install EV chargers in any new or expanded
car parks as part of the capital budget of that project covering a minimum 5% of parking bays.
Implications
Policy
Proposes a policy for locating new EV chargers
Finance
and The total capital cost for installation of 75 chargers and 3 rapid
value for money chargers is £707,880. It is proposed to fund this from external
capital grant of £367,200 and £340,680 capital funding from the
Local Services Electric Charging Fund (£200,000) and the
Climate Change Capital Fund (£140,680), which are contained
within the 2022/23 capital programme.
The report seeks approval to bid for On -street Residential
Chargepoint Scheme funding of £367,200.
The forecast revenue costs and income associated with the
project are detailed in figure 2 of the report. The costs will be
recovered through the tariff charge, which will be monitored and
changed in line with energy and material costs. It is forecast that
12

Page 14

there will be a net revenue budget reduction of £23,030 by year 3
when compared to the existing 2022/23 base budget, this forecast
assumes a change in the tariff to 40p kwh in year 3. In 2022/23
there will be no net change to the existing base budget as a result
of installing the additional 75 chargers and 3 rapid chargers.
Approval to installation and fund the additional chargers detailed
in this report within years 1 and 2 will be subject to separate
approval through Capital Strategy.
Legal

Procurement
Human
Resources
Property

The Climate Change Act 2008 establishes a legally binding target
to reduce the UK’s greenhouse gas emissions by at least 80% in
2050 from 1990 levels.
The Procurement of EVCP equipment will be undertaken in
accordance with the Council’s Finance and Contract Rules.
Some Highways staff will be re-focused to prioritise EV charging
installation and maintenance. Some additional training required.
Off-street sites in NCC ownership are included in the programme
along with land that falls within the boun daries of the adopted
highway
Site selection of EVCPs have been made considering levels of
socio-economic deprivation to ensure sites are spread across all
indices.

Equalities
(Impact
Assessment
attached)
Yes ☐ No x Currently, EVCP bays are generally not designed for disabled
users. The market is moving towards offering more accessible
N/A
☐
chargepoints and this will be considered in next year’s proposal.
Risk
See corporate risk register
Assessment
Crime
& N/A
Disorder
Customer
EVCPs will cater for residents.
Consideration
Carbon
Adopting recommendations in this paper will either directly or
reduction
indirectly lead to significant carbon savings.
Wards
All
Background papers:
Climate Change Action Plan 2021-23
Northumberland Climate Change Update Feb 2022

13

Page 15

Report sign off.
Authors must ensure that relevant officers and Members have agreed the content of the
report:
Full name of officer
Suki Binjal
Jan Willis
Rick O’Farrell
Glen Sanderson

Monitoring Officer/Legal
Finance
Relevant Executive Director
Portfolio Holder(s)
Authors and Contact Details
Nicholas Johnston
Climate Change
Programme Manager
nick.johnston@northumberland.gov.uk
Diego Perera-Solis
Assistant Project Manager – Climate Change

Matthew Baker
Climate Change, Business Intelligence and Corporate Performance
Service Director
matthew.baker@northumberland.gov.uk

14

Page 16

NORTHUMBERLAND COUNTY COUNCIL
CABINET
At a meeting of the Cabinet held at County Hall, Morpeth on Tuesday, 7 June 2022
at 10.00 am.
PRESENT
Councillor G. Sanderson
(Leader of the Council, in the Chair)

CABINET MEMBERS
Horncastle, C.
Pattison, W.
Renner-Thompson, G.

Riddle, J.R.
Watson, J.G.
Wearmouth, R.

OTHER MEMBERS

Stewart, G.

Seymour, C.

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE
Baker, M.

Service Director, Climate Change,
Business Intelligence and
Performance
Interim Monitoring Officer
Director of Adult Social Services
Democratic and Electoral Services
Manager
Interim Senior Service Director
Project Manager, Climate Change
Service Director, Local Services
Interim Joint Director of Children’s
Services
Interim Executive Director of
Planning and Local Services
Interim Executive Director of Place
and Regeneration
Interim Joint Director of Children’s

Binjal, S.
Bradley, N.
Hadfield, K.
Hunter, P.
Johnston, N.
Jones, P.
Kingham, A.
Murfin, R.
O’Farrell, R.
Reiter, G.
Ch.’s Initials………

1

Page 17

Services
Head of Democratic and Electoral
Services
Interim Executive Director for
Communities and Business
Development
Interim Executive Director of
Finance and S151 Officer

Roll, J.
Taylor, M.

Willis,J.

5.

REPORT OF THE INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF PLANNING AND
LOCAL SERVICES
Northumberland Waste Management Strategy – Proposed Food Waste
Recycling Pilot Schemes
The report advised Cabinet of future obligations to offer food waste
collections to households arising from the Environment Act 2021 and sought
approval for a weekly household food waste collection pilot scheme to
assess the viability of collections across Northumberland, together with a
home food waste composting pilot scheme to consider potential options in
rural areas where weekly food waste collections may not be practicable or
affordable.
The report highlighted the importance of the Council gaining an
understanding of the financial, social, human resource and environmental
implications of delivering a new food waste recycling service across the
whole County when Government funding became available around 2024/25.
The report was introduced by Councillor Riddle and Paul Jones detailed the
key points. A number of questions were asked including:•

•

There were concerns about the space available for the different types
of recycling bins, especially at terraced properties, and the potential
for birds etc to disturb bagged waste at coastal locations. Mr Jones
replied that more recycling inevitably meant more segregation and
more containers. As part of the pilot, some households had been
selected which were already on glass collection so officers could see
how households performed when they had the fuller range of activity.
Efforts were also being made to accommodate as much of the
different recyclable material as possible into the mixed recycling bin.
Food waste containers would be lidded.
Would members receive regular feedback? Mr Jones advised that
performance would be monitored closely and feedback provided to
Scrutiny and Cabinet before the end of the pilot.

RESOLVED that:-

Cabinet, 7 June 2022

2

Page 18

6.

(a)

Cabinet note the content of the report including key learning objectives
of the pilot schemes and the features of the collection and treatment
systems to be deployed;

(b)

Cabinet approve the commencement of a 10-month, kerbside food
waste collection pilot scheme at approximately 4,800 properties as
detailed in the report and commit £43,000 capital and £128,000 nonrecurrent revenue funding already allocated in the Council’s Medium
Term Financial Plan to fund the scheme;

(c)

Cabinet approve the commencement of a home food waste
composting pilot scheme for approximately 90 households located at
three rural settlements as detailed in the report, and commit £18,000
from the Climate Change Capital Fund to fund the purchase of the
units; and

(d)

Cabinet note that the findings of both pilot schemes will be reported to
Cabinet early in 2023/24.

JOINT REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR FOR CLIMATE CHANGE,
BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE AND CORPORATE PERFORMANCE AND
THE SERVICE DIRECTOR FOR LOCAL SERVICES
Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 2022-25
The report proposed a strategy for funding, siting, installing and maintaining
electric vehicle charge points for the next three years starting in the financial
year 2022/23 (copy attached to the signed minutes as Appendix C).
The report was introduced by the Leader who highlighted that the Council
was now the highest achieving authority in England in rolling out electric
vehicle chargers, which was excellent.
Matt Baker took members through the report which detailed how the rollout
would be accelerated.
A number of points were raised including:•
•

•

The installation of a fast charger in Bellingham was welcomed as it
was a tourist area.
There were some issues around chargers being blocked. Mr Baker
advised that this was a common issue and there was no easy answer,
other than to perhaps charge for length of time instead of amount of
power. It was suggested that a report be submitted on the options.
The installation of EV charging points in new car parks, and that
Council staff were now installing them, was welcomed.

RESOLVED that:-

Cabinet, 7 June 2022

3

Page 19

(a)

Cabinet approve the strategic intention to prioritise residents who park
on-street as the primary target market for future electric vehicle
charge points and the hierarchy for site selection;

(b)

Cabinet approve the intention to bid to ORCS for funding for 75 ‘on
street’ EVCP units (150 EVCP sockets), a bid value £367,200, which it
is proposed to match fund by £244,800 from the 2022/23 NCC Capital
Programme;

(c)

Cabinet approve the capital match funding allocation of £244,800.
This funding is contained within the 2022/23 approved Capital
Programme; Local Services EV Charging Fund (£200,000) and the
Climate Change Capital Fund (£44,800);

(d)

Cabinet approve capital funding of £95,880 from the Climate Change
Capital Fund to fully fund the installation of an additional 2 rapid
EVCPs at Berwick and Haltwhistle and 1 fast charger at Seahouses
car park to improve provision for visitors in areas of known high
demand. This funding is contained within the 2022/23 approved
Capital Programme; Climate Change Capital Fund. These EVCPs
would not be eligible for grant funding support under current
Government funding schemes;

(e)

the Service Director for Local Services be authorised, in consultation
with the Cabinet Member for Environment and Local Services, to
make in-year adjustments to the tariff, should this be considered
necessary in response to changes to electricity prices, cost of
materials or labour so that the income generated from charges covers
running costs and there is no additional revenue budget requirement;
and

(f)

Cabinet approve the commitment to install EV chargers in any new or
expanded car parks as part of the capital budget of that project
covering a minimum 5% of parking bays.

CHAIR……………………………………..
DATE……………………………………….

Cabinet, 7 June 2022

4

Page 20

Agenda Item 4b
B

CABINET
7 JUNE 2022
__________________________________________________________________________________

NORTHUMBERLAND WASTE MANAGEMENT STRATEGY – PROPOSED FOOD WASTE
RECYCLING PILOT SCHEMES
Report of:

Rob Murfin, Interim Executive Director of Planning and Local Services

Cabinet Member: Cllr John Riddle, Environment & Local Services
____________________________________________________________________________
Purpose of report
To advise cabinet of future obligations to offer food waste collections to households arising from
the Environment Act 2021 and to seek approval for a weekly household food waste collection pilot
scheme to assess the viability of collections across Northumberland, together with a home food
waste composting pilot scheme to consider potential options in rural areas where weekly food
waste collections may not be practicable or affordable.
The report will highlight the importance of the Council gaining an understanding of the financial,
social, human resource and environmental implications of delivering a new food waste recycling
service across the whole County when Government funding becomes available around 2024/25.
Recommendations
It is recommended that Cabinet:A) Notes the content of the report including key learning objectives of the pilot schemes and the
features of the collection and treatment systems to be deployed;
B) Approves the commencement of a 10-month, kerbside food waste collection pilot scheme at
approximately 4,800 properties as detailed in this report and commits £43,000 capital and
£128,000 non-recurrent revenue funding already allocated in the Council’s Medium Term Financial
Plan to fund the scheme;
C) Approves the commencement of a home food waste composting pilot scheme for
approximately 90 households located at three rural settlements as detailed in this report, and
commits £18,000 from the Climate Change Capital Fund to fund the purchase of the units.

Page 21

D) Note that the findings of both pilot schemes will be reported to Cabinet early in 2023/24.
Link to Corporate Plan
‘Thriving’ - We want to attract more and better jobs
‘Connecting’ - We want you to have access to the things you need
‘Enjoying’ - We want you to love where you live
This report is also relevant to the recently published Climate Change Action Plan 2021-2023 –
Priority Action Area 7 - Reducing Waste
Key issue
The Government has undertaken consultations on its Resources and Waste Strategy in 2021 and
the Environment Act received royal assent in November 2021, setting out the key statutory
obligations for local authorities in England to collect a range of waste streams separately to
facilitate recycling. The detail of the requirements and timescales for these changes is going to be
brought forward through regulations and guidance that will be issued by the Secretary of State for
the Environment, pending the outcome of the latest consultation exercises. It is envisaged that
local authorities will be required to provide kerbside recycling collection services for a wider range
of materials, including weekly food waste from as early as 2024/25. Through the Consultation,
government has repeatedly stated its intention that funding support for local authorities to meet the
cost of food waste collections will be met through ‘new burdens’ provisions.
The Resources and Waste Strategy has proposed that food waste collections should be
undertaken on a weekly frequency to all domestic property types, to ensure we maximise the
quantity of food waste diverted from household waste, unless there are clear technical,
environmental or economic reasons evidenced in the form of an environmental assessment, for
not doing so.
The obligation to collect food waste for recycling will be challenging on several levels to large,
diverse and remote authorities like Northumberland. There are environmental benefits in the
minimisation and collection of food waste for the production of energy or composting in terms of
reducing CO2 emissions and landfill, but the financial costs of delivering this will be high, and far in
excess of what the Council could afford to deliver without new burdens funding from government.
Furthermore, the consultation did not discuss the disproportionately high financial and
environmental cost of collecting small quantities of food waste from extremely rural locations, nor
focus on the importance of prevention measures to minimise food waste through good educational
awareness programmes.
The proposed trial of home food compost units that are capable of safely receiving and treating
food waste products from cooked and uncooked vegetable and animal food preparation and plate
leftovers, will allow us to evaluate the feasibility of offering residents in extremely rural locations
the equipment, advice and support needed to home compost their food waste where it might not
be technically, economically or environmentally practicable to send a dedicated food waste
collection vehicle and crew.
The evidence base gathered through these trials will allow the Council to make informed decisions
about the future roll out of weekly food waste recycling collections that will ensure the best use of
scarce financial resources and satisfy anticipated new government funding conditions, whilst also

Page 22

considering how more remote rural communities are still able to play a part in food waste recycling
if it is impracticable to provide a weekly collection service to these residents. The evidence base
should also recognise the educational impacts of providing a food waste collection where initial
collection yields can decline over time through increased resident awareness, so taking into
account the need to minimise food waste through waste awareness programmes and coordination
with the voluntary and community sectors who receive and distribute donations of unwanted food
stuffs.
1. Background
A Cabinet report titled ‘Northumberland Waste Management Strategy – Proposed Trial of Kerbside
Glass Collections’ was presented to Cabinet on 13 th October 2020. The report detailed the
preparatory work on assessing waste and recycling collection options in order to allow the County
Council to respond to potential future obligations in the Government’s Resources and Waste
Strategy, which reported the findings of its first public consultation in 2019.
The report outlined how the strategy would require major investment in vehicles, containers,
communications activities, staffing resources and waste sorting infrastructure to allow
Northumberland to increase recycling across a range of materials including food waste, and
contribute towards national 2035 recycling targets, including 65% of all household waste being
recycled or composted.
In 2020/21 Northumberland recycled or composted 34% of its household waste. Whilst supporting
the objectives of the National Resources and Waste Strategy, the Council requires Government
financial support through ‘new burdens’ funding to help meet the significant investment required in
new glass, plastics and weekly food waste recycling collection systems in order to enable the
Council’s recycling performance to markedly increase between 2025 and 2030.
With support from the Waste and Recycling Action Programme (WRAP) various household waste
recycling collection models have been developed and the cost and impact on recycling
performance of delivering these services has been estimated in the WRAP modelling, which was
reported to Cabinet in October 2020. In order to support long term investment decisions and
service planning it is essential that we test and validate these modelling assumptions by operating
trials for weekly food waste collections as we have done successfully with glass recycling trials.
This report therefore sets out the key elements of a kerbside weekly food waste trial to commence
at four locations from September 2022 (detailed in Appendix 1).

Page 23

2. Weekly Food Waste Collections
2.1 The Benefits of Separate Food Waste Collections
The National Resources and Waste Strategy supported by the Council’s waste strategy identifies
that residual household waste collections comprise a significant proportion of discarded food
waste that should ideally be minimised through influencing resident awareness and behaviour.
The remaining quantity in the household bin should, where practicable, be collected separately,
processed and put to beneficial use through recovering energy from it, or using it as an organic
soil improver on agricultural land, replacing traditional fertilisers.
Northumberland, like many large English local authorities followed previous government policy that
prioritised the diversion of biodegradable household waste from landfill in order to minimise
methane emissions, a potent greenhouse gas. With the support of Government Waste PFI Credit
funding, the Council successfully secured investment in the development of an energy from waste
(EfW) facility in Tees Valley that is used to treat Northumberland’s residual household waste,
including food waste, and ~90% of the county’s residual household waste is sent to EfW
generating around 9.6MW of electricity each year for supply to the National Grid.
More recently, emphasis on reducing our carbon emissions is moving government policy to
increase the amount of food waste being separately collected for treatment by anaerobic digestion
(AD) in order to recover energy and by products called digestates that can be used as an organic
soil improver in agriculture. The application of AD technology for treatment of food waste is now a
proven commercially viable technology, and offers higher energy generation potential, lower
carbon emissions and soil improvement opportunities (by displacing use of inorganic fertilisers
whilst also benefiting soil structure, microbial health and water retention) when compared to the
current approach of processing this waste through an EfW facility. The introduction of a separate
food waste collection service with processing via AD will therefore result in this material being
diverted from the EfW facility, which may have some positive and negative impacts on the
operation of the EfW facility and Waste PFI Contractual arrangements that we will seek to identify
and evaluate as part of the trial.
2.2 Social and Economic Factors
The introduction of weekly separate food waste collections can help to raise public awareness
about the amount of household food waste we throw away each year and through changing
habits, result in less waste being thrown away, saving residents money on their grocery bills and
the Council on its waste costs. In this respect an important part of the trials will be to encourage
food waste minimisation and help avoid over allocation of waste collection round resources where
yields per kg/hh collected can reduce significantly over time.

A WRAP commissioned food waste report published in January 2020 concluded that food
waste in the UK was starting to reduce, but that households still waste 4.5m tonnes of food a
year that could have been eaten, worth £14bn. This amounts to £700 worth of food waste per
annum for an average family with children.
In 2019 the Council commissioned a compositional analysis of residual waste at a number of
sample household types across the County. This survey looked at the content of residual waste
bins to provide insight about the potential waste that could be recycled with further investment in
services. The results showed a range of recyclable materials within the mix, and indicated that
across Northumberland as a whole, 28.4% (1.7kg/hh/wk) of the contents of residual bins consisted
of food waste. A proportion of discarded food waste is deemed to be avoidable. That is to say it

Page 24

was potentially edible at the point of disposal. Around 77% of this food waste was deemed
avoidable, the equivalent of 1.3kg/hh/wk.
This data was used in WRAP’s collection modelling report, using the average amount of avoidable
food waste per household that might be collected per week as 1.3 kg. Taking an estimated
number of households in the council as 145,000 could result in around 10,000 tonnes per annum
being collected for recycling, reducing carbon dioxide emissions and increasing the Council’s
recycling and composting performance by around 6 %.
The analysis showed large variances in food waste present across the County with the highest
sample being over 3kg/hh/wk. Some authorities with existing food waste collections are collecting
higher average yields than 1.3kg/hh/wk and so we want to find out through the trial the actual
potential for Northumberland, while ensuring we promote good waste minimisation practice.
2.3 Hot Bin home food waste composting trial proposals.
The proposal is to offer residents in extremely remote rural areas where the Council does not
provide a garden waste collection service the opportunity to participate in a trial of the latest
temperature monitored in vessel composting bin design technology, which can accept a range of
food wastes. Its design makes it capable of processing more than just garden waste and
vegetables, which other more traditional home compost bins are designed to deal with. These
latest units operate at sustained higher temperatures to ensure harmful pathogens are dealt with
through the process of making a compost safe for domestic use as a garden soil improver
application. They also have a reported processing capacity of at least 5kg per week which will
allow trial participants to blend food waste (average yield of 1.3kg/hh/week) with garden waste.
If successful, the trail could provide a financial as well as environmental benefit through avoided
waste collection vehicle journeys to rural areas where currently no collections for garden or food
waste are provided, as it is not financially or environmentally viable to do so due to the high
collection costs/carbon emission incurred relative to the low volumes of waste collected.
A programme of technical support will be offered to those residents in the identified trial areas
volunteering to participate, and the equipment will remain the property of the Council for the
duration of the trial period, so that if the resident no longer wishes to participate part way through
the trial, the Council can arrange the return of the compost bin so that it can be reused elsewhere.
At the end of the trial period residents will be given the option of keeping the home-composting
bins for on-going use, or arranging for their collection by the Council.
2.4 Evaluating the trials
There will be a net cost involved in investing in new collection vehicles, staff, waste containers,
communications and treatment processes identified in the WRAP modelling report which is set out
in the financial implications section below.
The council is reviewing examples of food waste collections in other local authority areas and
referring to specialist food waste composting publications produced by WRAP. However, in
recognising the unique place that is Northumberland it is essential that that we carry out trials to
test the assumptions and ensure we maximise the efficiency of the collection service, achieving
the best environmental outcomes while demonstrating value for money.

Page 25

The trial will measure and record participation rates and collection yields per property in each of
the designated trial areas, as well as the impact on residual waste bins in the same areas to
establish how much food waste has been displaced from residual household waste collections.
The productivity of food waste collection rounds and the projected cost of providing the new
service based on the trial data will be provided, and feedback from participating residents and
employees will be gathered.
For the home costing trial areas, resident participation in the trial will be optional and conditional
upon signing a service level agreement (SLA) pledging to participate in and record and provide
basic information about the performance of the compost bins. Officers will provide advice and
support to residents to ensure the best outcome possible. Simple data on the quantity, type and
frequency of household waste processed in the composting bin will be collected.
3. Food Waste Collection Project Delivery
Below is a project summary outlining the details including the ‘what, where and how it will work’.
3.1 What residents will see Each participating household will receive a 5 litre kitchen caddy with a sealable lid for the
collection and storage of kitchen food waste inside the kitchen as it is produced. A roll of clear
polythene caddy liners will be provided for use by the resident in order to keep the inside of the
kitchen caddy clean. The household will also be provided with a larger 23 litre capacity food waste
bin for the storage of accumulated bagged kitchen waste to be kept outside the house. Details of
the containers is provided in the appendix 2 to this report.
The householder will empty the bagged contents of the small kitchen food waste caddy into the
larger outside food waste bin as often as necessary. The outside food waste bin will be lidded to
prevent access by animals and other pests and be placed out for collection at the kerbside by the
council collection crew on the same day every week. Where practical to do so the rounds have
been designed to take place on the same day of every week as other existing waste collections, to
make it easier for the household to remember. However, it won’t be practicable to do this for all
participants so we will also seek to monitor the difference in performance for those households
where the food waste collection takes place on a different day to their normal waste collection
service (for recycling or residual waste). Information on how to store and present food waste along
with a calendar will be provided with the food waste container. Any resident receiving an assisted
waste collection will have their outside food waste bin collected from the same location as their
other bins.
Advice obtained from WRAP and councils already delivering a food waste service suggests that
providing free of charge polythene caddy liners serves to encourage residents to participate
regularly in food waste collections. However, as part of the trial resident attitudes to the use of
polythene caddy liners and the impact on participation will be recorded. Some authority areas are
considering allowing residents to use their own surplus plastic bags or not using a bag as
alternative methods based on resident preferences. Efficient and hygienic collection of the food
waste separated by residents will be an important factor on the success of the trial. It should also
be noted that the polythene caddy liners are separated from the waste feedstock entering the AD
facility as part of the initial pre-treatment processing of the waste and once dried the liners are
then sent for disposal via EfW. The alternative use of biodegradable starch or paper caddy liners
has been considered, but as these are significantly more expensive to purchase than the

Page 26

polythene liners, and as the starch-based liners would also be removed as ‘packaging film’ during
the pre-treatment process their use in the pilot has been discounted at this stage.
When residents are running low on caddy liners, they will be asked to attach a bag to the outside
food waste bin on the week of collection and the collection crew will leave a new stock with the
empty bin after collection. Residents will be able to contact the council via the council website
reporting line for supplies if necessary. The internal kitchen caddy, external food waste bin and
caddy liners will be provided free of charge and resident uptake monitored to ensure fair usage.
A small number of the trial area properties may comprise communal waste storage and where this
is the case, residents will be provided with a 5 litre kitchen caddy and supply of polythene
compostable liners for use indoors, and a mix of 23 litre food waste bins or a communal 140 or
240 litre wheel bin as appropriate.
The food waste will be collected within a specialist sealed collection vehicle to prevent
uncontrolled leakage of any organic liquors from the waste which will be hired for the duration of
the trial. The collected waste will be taken at the end of each day or whenever the vehicle is full to
a sealed transfer skip for onward bulk transportation to an AD plant located in the northeast region
(detailed arrangements for processing via AD are currently in discussion with our Waste PFI
Contractor). The AD process produces a natural biogas which can be used as a renewable energy
source, with applications including generation of electricity for supply to the National Grid, direct
supply into the National Gas Network, use for heating and also as a compressed natural gas
(CNG) and an alternative fuel to liquid petroleum gas (LPG). The organic digestate from the
process can also be used as an alternative to conventional fertilisers on agricultural land. The use
of the organic digestate on farmland is controlled by permits and monitored by the Department for
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA).
With respect to the home food waste compost trial selected residents will be provided with a hot
bin unit delivered to their home, along with instructions and ongoing guidance and support.
3.2 Trial Locations Four residential areas have been chosen to receive the food waste kerbside trial. Due to the
specialist nature of the food waste collection vehicle, transfer and treatment process the trial areas
have been chosen to represent a varied range of demographics existing across the county, but
limited to areas within reasonable reach of the operational base at Coopies Lane Depot, Morpeth
(where the collection vehicle and crew will be based) and the waste transfer facility at West
Sleekburn, near Ashington (where the sealed transfer skip will be located).
Using publicly available data on property type and indices of multiple deprivation (MDI) rankings, a
range of areas within operational distances of the above facilities were considered.
Two areas within this defined geographic area already participating in the kerbside glass recycling
trial were selected, at Morpeth and Bedlington. This is to allow the measurement of the impact on
residual waste where households are receiving separate glass and food waste collections if
kerbside food and glass collections are rolled out county wide in the future.
The other food waste collection trial areas selected cover part of Pegswood, and then a route
which includes Lancaster Park in Morpeth, Hebron, Longhirst and Ulgham, thus ensuring that the
pilot scheme as a whole covers a broad range of different housing types as well as households in

Page 27

the upper, medium and lower MID’s. A detailed map for each trial area is provided in Appendix 1
of this report.
In order to gain valuable information at least cost, one single food waste collection vehicle and
crew will operate the trial over four working days moving to each trial area on the designated day
of the week. In each trial area it is hoped that a sample of non-household food waste sources
including school kitchens and the restaurant at County Hall will be added to the rounds, to help
gain valuable insight about the logistics of collecting food waste from non-household kitchens
currently serviced by the Council waste services. This could increase the total quantity of food
waste collected during the trial to 400 tonnes.
The selected three areas for the home food waste compost bin trials are at Gilsland, near
Haltwhistle, Elsdon, near Rothbury and Chatton near Wooler. These areas were chosen due to
their extreme rurality, geographic spread across the west, central and north of the county in
locations where currently no garden waste service is provided, and so where it will be equally
challenging technically, environmentally, and economically, to provide weekly food waste kerbside
collections. Finally, analysis of requests for service has indicated there is a demand for provision
of a garden waste service in these areas (albeit not sufficient to justify the high cost of provision),
which will hopefully ensure that there are residents who would be willing to participate in the home
compost bin trial.
4. Contribution to Overall Recycling Performance
The food waste collection trial is anticipated to collect around 1.3kg/hh/week at 4,800 properties
for a period of 10 months, thus diverting around 280 tonnes from the residual waste stream. This
will have a negligible effect on household recycling performance during the trial year 2022. One
key benefit of conducting the trial is to establish if more than 1.3 kg/hh/week used in the WRAP
modelling can be achieved along with estimating likely participation rates, which would then impact
on projected tonnage collected per annum if rolled out county wide in the future.
For example, applying the modelled 1.3kg/hh/week of food waste across 145,000 participating
households would equate to a potential diversion of 9,802 tonnes, or 11,310 tonnes if the average
yield collected through the trial was found to be 1.5kh/hh/week. The investment in a food waste
collection could result in the Councils household waste recycling and composting performance
increasing by ~6% from around 34% to 40%.
Operating the trial for the period up to 31 March 2023 is therefore considered necessary to provide
greater confidence in the data used for long term service planning and investment.
5. Climate Change Implications
Collecting food waste separately from other mixed residual waste will result in the diversion of
waste that would be treated by Energy from Waste (EfW), which within the waste hierarchy is
classed under Recovery, whereas landfill is the lowest option under Disposal, reducing methane
gas production.
Food waste processed by EfW results in a reduced amount of CO2 emissions at around -37
kg.CO2e/tonne, while food waste processed through an anaerobic digestion process, as described
in section 3.1 above, will result in a much better reduction of CO2 emissions at -78 kg.CO2/tonne.
Typically, the amount of CO2 savings per tonne of food waste diverted from EfW treatment of
mixed residual household waste to treatment via anaerobic digestion will be -41 kg.CO2e/tonne.

Page 28

In order to collect food waste for processing separately, the Council will have to invest in a fleet of
dedicated vehicles which will consume fuel and result in CO2 emissions.
The Climate Change team is undergoing work to benchmark the CO2 emissions from the existing
waste collection services and will support the food waste collection trial to help understand the
possible CO2 savings that could result in county wide food waste collections, while also
considering the impact of the new collection vehicle fleet and the implications for utilising home
food waste compost bins across the most rural parts of the county.
The Climate Change team will report on these issues using the collection trial data and report their
findings as part of the overall update to Cabinet at the end of this trial.
The 300 to 400 tonnes of food waste (from 4,800 household food waste plus commercial school
kitchens) expected to be collected during the 10-month trial provides a positive contribution to
tackling climate change, even after taking into account the CO2 emissions from the collection and
transportation of the food waste, delivering an overall net saving of 16.4 tonnes of CO2e (based
on the Waste & Resources Action Programme - Carbon WARM model conversion factors).
The Council’s Carbon Impact Assessment process has also been followed with the proposal in this
report offering an overall score of 1.0 which demonstrates that the proposal offers a positive
outcome and aids Northumberland to move towards a net zero position.
6 Financial Implications
The 10-month trial will incur revenue costs of £128,000 including labour (£63,760), vehicle running
costs (£11,430), vehicle hire (£34,660), polythene caddy liners (£11,150) and resident
communications (£7,000).
The capital cost of £43,000 relates to purchasing the required 5 litre Kitchen caddies (£9,550), 23
litre kitchen waste bins (£24,700) and an enclosed sealed transfer skip (£8,750).
Funding allocations to meet both the capital and revenue costs of the weekly food waste collection
trial were included in the MTFP for the 2022/23 budget which was approved by the County Council
in February 2022.
It is proposed that the capital funding to meet the £18,000 cost of purchasing 90 home compost
units and communications materials be drawn down from the Climate Change Capital Fund.
7. Conclusion and Next Steps
It is therefore recommended that the food waste trial is agreed to commence September 2022,
with immediate resident engagement and guidance to explain how the system works, and weekly
collections commencing as soon as possible around week commencing 20 th September.
Residents will be encouraged to ‘give it a go’ but will be able to opt out of the trial at any time if any
concerns cannot be allayed.
Residents in the food waste home compost trial areas will be invited to participate and sign up to
the support programme during week commencing 20th June.

Page 29

The Council will receive a report on the outcome of the food waste trials along with an update on
any plans in response to the Government Waste Strategy statutory guidance on consistency in
recycling as soon as this is published, anticipated in spring of 2023.
Table 1. Timeline Proposed Communications Food Waste Trial 4,800 Households*
Milestone
Cabinet Decision

Date
7th June 2022

Issue letter to participants detailing service to all 4,800
properties.

5th September 2022

Bins delivered to 4800 new participant households plus any
240 litre bins for communal properties or commercial units

w/c 19th September
2022

1st scheduled weekly collections to properties on the trial

w/c 26th September
2022

*Implementation timeline is dependent upon suppliers honouring the delivery schedules for
containers.
Table 2. Timeline Proposed Communications Home Compost Trial 4,800 Households
Milestone
Cabinet Decision

Date
7th June 2022

Issue offer letter and information including FAQ’s to
participants detailing requirements to residents at all four
village locations.
Evaluate responses received and send out terms and
conditions of participation to interested parties w/c
Presentation and meeting of participants to complete trial
participation agreements followed by delivery of food waste
compost bins. Trial commences w/c

8th June 2022
20th June 2022
w/c 4th July 2022

Implications of Report
Policy

The food waste collection trial is in line with existing policy and seeks
to further enhance recycling performance. It is also in line with the
Council’s Climate Change Action Plan and aims to make a positive
contribution towards tackling climate change through the avoided
carbon emissions associated with treatment of residual waste
containing food waste.

Finance and
value for
money

It is considered that if the trial is successful, it will support the
assumptions in the theoretical modelling, which identified this
collection arrangement as representing the most technically,

Page 30

environmentally and economically practicable solution for food waste
collections across all of Northumberland. The cost of the pilot is
allowed for in the Council’s MTFP for 2022/23.
Legal

Section 57 of the Act replaces Section 45A Environmental Protection
Act 1990 (“EPA 1990”) on waste collection.

Procurement

None at this stage. All food waste caddies and bins will be acquired
from existing framework contracts which have been market tested.
The treatment of the 400 tonnes food waste will be arranged through
market testing of the existing integrated waste management contract.

Human
Resources

A driver and 1 food waste loader would be required to enable the trial
to commence through recruiting from the existing waste services staff
and back filling these posts with fixed term workers.

Property

None at this stage

Equalities
(Impact

There are no additional equalities implications in respect of the
recommendation to extend the trial period.

Assessment
attached)

The Council operates an assisted collection service for people who
Yes ☐ No ☐ are unable to physically present their bins for collection on the
kerbside, this arrangement is available for all collection services
N/A
☐
including the food waste collection trial.
Risk
Assessment

The health and safety impacts associated with kerbside food waste
collections are being monitored and evaluated. The collections routes
will be reviewed to ensure safe conditions but no significant safety
concerns are envisaged.

Crime
& None
Disorder
Customer
A communications plan will include advice, information and assurance
Consideration provided to residents who might have concerns about odour, flies and
rodents attracted to the separated food waste presented. Participants
will be encouraged to ’give it a go’ but will have the option to opt-out of
the pilot scheme if we are unable to resolve any concerns/issues that
they may have at any time during the trial.
A survey of participants in the trial area will be conducted and the
results reported in a report no later than 9 months following the
commencement of the trials.
Carbon
reduction

It is essential that a Life Cycle Assessment approach is used to
determine the overall net effect of the carbon impacts associated with
the kerbside collection of food waste for use in recycling. The carbon
impact of the trial has therefore been evaluated using the
Government’s Waste Resources Action Programme (WRAP) Carbon
WARM model conversion factors.

Page 31

The Carbon WARM model shows that the 400 tonnes of food waste
collected during a 10-month trial provides a positive contribution to
tackling climate change, even after taking into account the CO2
emissions from the collection and transportation of the recovered
food, with the trial delivering an overall net saving of 16.4 tonnes of
CO2e.

Health and
Wellbeing
Wards

The NCC Carbon Impact Assessment tool has been used and
generated a score of 1.0. A full copy of the assessment is attached
as Appendix 3.
None
The kerbside food waste collection trial is being undertaken in the
following wards: Bedlington Central, Morpeth Stobhill, Morpeth North
and Pegswood.
The proposed home food waste composting trials are to be carried
out in the following wards:
Elsdon, nr Otterburn (Ward – Coquetdale)
Gilsland, nr Haltwhistle (Ward- Haydon & Hadrian)
Chatton, nr Wooler (Ward - Wooler)
The findings and outcomes of the trial will be relevant to all wards as
they will influence any future decision on the expansion of the food
waste collection service countywide.

Background papers:
Our waste, our resources, a strategy for England’ HMSO 17 December 2018
Review of Waste Strategy - kerbside collection of household waste, February 2019
DEFRA Consultation 7th May 2021 – Consistency in Household and Business Recycling in
England.
Northumberland Residual Household Waste Compositional Analysis – MEL Insights. 2020
Northumberland Waste Collection Options Report – Final- January 2020- WRAP Ricardo
Report sign off.
Authors must ensure that officers and members have agreed the content of the report:
Full Name of Officer
Monitoring Officer/Legal
Suki Binjal
Service Director Finance & Deputy S151 Officer
Alison Elsdon
Relevant Executive Director
Pp Paul Jones
Chief Executive
N/A
Portfolio Holder(s)
John Riddle

Page 32

Author and Contact Details
Colin Curtis
Resources and Waste Commercial and Contracts Manager
Telephone: 07919570052
Email: colin.curtis@northumberland.gov.uk
Greg Gavin
Head of Neighbourhood Services
Telephone: 01670 622278
Email: greg.gavin@northumberland.gov.uk
Paul Jones
Service Director - Local Services
Email paul.jones01@northumberland.gov.uk
Tel 01670 623432

Page 33

Appendix 1: Food waste kerbside collection areas (participant households shown as
coloured dots)
Morpeth Trial Area (Current glass pilot area)

Bedlington Trial Area (Current glass pilot area)

Page 34

Morpeth – Lancaster Park, Hebron, Longhirst & Ulgham

Pegswood

Home Compost Food Waste Bins – Pilot Scheme Areas:

Page 35

Elsdon, nr Otterburn (Ward – Coquetdale)
Gilsland, nr Haltwhistle (Ward- Haydon & Hadrian)
Chatton, nr Wooler (Ward - Wooler)

Page 36

Appendix 2: Food Waste Kerbside Collection System and Home Compost Hot Bin Details

.
Figure 1. A 5 ltr kitchen caddy and 23 ltr kitchen waste bin and “Hot Bin” home compost bin.

Figure 2. 7.5 tonne GVW Food Collection Vehicle.

Page 37

Page 38

Appendix 3 – NCC Carbon Impact Assessment Tool
The overall impact assessment for this proposal is: 1.0, which includes:
Policy score: TBC
Partnerships and Engagement score: TBC
Heating score: 0
Transport score: 0
Renewable Energy Generation score: TBC
Carbon Sequestration: 0
Waste score: TBC

Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

Northumberland County Council
Communities and Place Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Work Programme 2022-2023
Page 41

Agenda Item 5

Sean Nicholson: 01670 622605 – Sean.Nicholson@northumberland.gov.uk

1.

Terms of reference:
(1)

To maintain an overview of the Management Agreements in place between the County Council and Active
Northumberland, Woodhorn Museum Charitable Trust and Northumberland Tourism.

(2)

To monitor, review and make recommendations about:

Page 42

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

2.

Development Planning
Neighbourhood Planning
Conservation
Housing
Climate Change
Countryside, Biodiversity and Landscape Quality
Waste Management and Energy Use
Public and Community Transport Network and Travel to School
Highway Maintenance, Streetscape and the Local Environment
Local and Neighbourhood services
Crime, Community Safety, and Fear of Crime, including CONTEST, Prevent and Channel
Antisocial Behaviour and Domestic Violence
Fire and Rescue
Emergency Services and Emergency Planning
Customer Services
Provision of Cultural and Leisure Facilities
Improving Quality of Life through Access to Culture and Leisure;
Supporting Economic Growth in the Arts, Culture and Leisure Sectors

Issues to be Timetabled/Considered
Market Strategy
Tree and Woodland Strategy
Enforcement of 20 mph Zones

16 June 2022

Northumberland County Council
Communities and Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2022-2023

31 August 2022
Active Northumberland Annual Outcome
Report

The Annual Outcome Report will contain a review on how the Active Northumberland Service
Plan had been delivered for the previous financial year.

Active Northumberland Service Plan

To consider Active Northumberland’s Service Plan 2022/23.

Annual Customer Complaints Report

To consider this annual report.

5 October 2022
To consider this annual report which will provide an update on the Council’s Fleet Replacement
Programme.

Emergency Communications Winter Plan

A Key recommendation in the Storm Arwen Review was for the Council to establish an
emergency communications winter plan.

Page 43

Fleet Replacement Programme

26 October 2022

7 December 2022

16 June 2022

11 January 2023

8 February 2023
Northumberland Infrastructure Funding
Statement

To consider the annual Infrastructure Funding Statement in respect of Section 106 Agreements.

8 March 2023
Library Service Strategy 2021-26

To update the Committee on the implementation of the Strategy.

Page 44

5 April 2023

26 April 2023

16 June 2022

